
    

Agendas and minutes of Personnel Commission meeting are available at the District’s website, www.berkeleyschools.net.  Also, in accordance with the Brown Act and Government 
Code § 54957.5 (b)(1), writings that are related to an agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting, that are public records not otherwise exempt from disclosure and that are 
distributed less than 72 hours prior to the meeting, shall be made available for public inspection at the time the writings are distributed to at least the majority of Commissioners.  The 
public may request copies of the records at the District’s Human Resources office at 2020 Bonar Street, Berkeley, CA  94702.  

 
 
 

Berkeley Unified School District 
The Board Room, 1231 Addison Street  

Berkeley, CA 94702 
 

Personnel Commission 
Timothy Davis, Chairperson           Heidi Goldstein, Vice-Chairperson          Isaiah Roter, Commissioner        

Charlie Castillo, Secretary 
 

Meeting Agenda 
October 25th, 2023 – 4:30 pm 

 
1.      Call to Order               Chairperson Zenor-Davis 

2.      Roll Call & Establishment of Quorum                                 Secretary Castillo 

3.      Public Comments (15-minute limit)            Public 
This is an opportunity for the public to comment on Personnel Commission business, not on the agenda. The time limit is  
five minutes per individual and a total of fifteen minutes per subject. No action shall be taken by the Commission.  

 
4.      Approval & Adoption of Agenda              Chairperson Zenor-Davis 

5.      Approval of Meeting Minutes            Chairperson Zenor-Davis 
Approve the Personnel Commission Meeting Minutes for the following: 
a) September 27th, 2023, Regular Meeting Minutes, p. 3-8 
b) October 10th, 2023, Special Meeting Minutes, p. 9-10 

 
6.  Reports 

a) Union         Union Representatives 
b) District Reports                           District Representatives 
c)   Commissioners Reports       Commissioners 
d)   Personnel Director        Secretary Castillo 

   New Hires and Examinations administered in the month of September, p. 11 
e)      Classification & Compensation Study      Secretary Castillo 

 
7. Consent Items         Chairperson Zenor-Davis 

It is recommended that the Personnel Commission consider approving a number of agenda items as a Consent list. Consent items  
are routine in nature and can be enacted in one motion without further discussion.   
Ratification of Eligibility Lists

a) Family Engagement & Equity Specialist, p.12 
b) Instructional Assistant, p.13 
c) Nutrition Services Assistant, p.14 

d) Nutrition Services Satellite Operator I, p.15 
e) Maintenance Engineer, p.16 
f) School Campus Aide, p.17 

8. Conference Item                 Chairperson Zenor-Davis 
These items are presented for discussion and action and may be carried over from a previous meeting.

a) Step Advance Request – J.Kaneshiro  Attachment A  
 

9. Discussion Items                        Chairperson Zenor-Davis 
These items are open for discussion and do not require action. 

a) Update on Union-appointed Commissioner 
 

10. Closed Session               Chairperson Zenor-Davis 
a) Performance Evaluation of the Executive Director, Classified Personnel- Government Code § 54954.5 (e) 

The Personnel Commission will meet in a closed session to discuss the performance evaluation with the Executive Director,  
Classified Personnel.  

b) The Personnel Commission will meet in closed session to discuss potential litigation: California Government Code §54954.5 
 

 

http://www.berkeleyschools.net/


    

Agendas and minutes of Personnel Commission meeting are available at the District’s website, www.berkeleyschools.net.  Also, in accordance with the Brown Act and Government 
Code § 54957.5 (b)(1), writings that are related to an agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting, that are public records not otherwise exempt from disclosure and that are 
distributed less than 72 hours prior to the meeting, shall be made available for public inspection at the time the writings are distributed to at least the majority of Commissioners.  The 
public may request copies of the records at the District’s Human Resources office at 2020 Bonar Street, Berkeley, CA  94702.  

 
 
 

 
11.        Report from Closed Session      Chairperson Zenor-Davis 

 
12. Public Comments (15-minute limit)      Public 

This is an opportunity for the public to comment on Personnel Commission business, not on the agenda. The time limit is  
five minutes per individual and a total of fifteen minutes per subject. No action shall be taken by the Commission. 

 
13. Next Meeting         Chairperson Zenor-Davis 

Follow-up items for the next Personnel Commission Meeting. 
 

14.       Adjournment                   Chairperson Zenor-Davis 

http://www.berkeleyschools.net/


Berkeley Unified School District 
Personnel Commission Meeting Minutes 

September 27th, 2023 – 4:30pm 

1. Call to Order
The meeting was held in a hybrid format, live in the Board Room and via Zoom meeting
#811 4287 6822. The meeting was called to order at 4:30 p.m.

2. Roll Call & Establishment of Quorum
Chairperson Zenor-Davis, Vice-Chairperson Goldstein and Commissioner Roter were
present, and a quorum was established.

3. Public Comments
Veronica Valerio, former Sylvia Mendez principal, Maria Carriedo, interim Sylvia Mendez
principal and Brazil McIntyre, After School Program Coordinator, all spoke in support of
Brianna Garcia, interim School Administrative Assistant II at Sylvia Mendez.

Mark Ramia, Instructional Assistant (IA) at Berkeley High School, asked for clarification of
the education code language regarding certificated staff leaving IA’s alone in the
classroom with students and said that IA’s are continually asked to work during off-duty
time.

4. Approval & Adoption of Agenda
Commissioner Roter asked to pull items 7c and 7d for discussion.
Vice-Chairperson Goldstein moved to approve and adopt the agenda, holding two items
for discussion; Commissioner Roter seconded the motion.
Approved, 3-0

5. Approval of Meeting Minutes
a) August 30th, 2023 – With no changes to note, Vice-Chairperson Goldstein moved to
approve item 5a; Commissioner Roter seconded the motion,
Approved, 3-0

6. Reports
a) Unions
Mildred Scherr, BCCE Vice-President, spoke in support of Ms. Garcia and said the Union
had been discussing with the Personnel Commission about how the District could
improve processes to encourage more promotion from within.  She said the Union held
a successful meeting for members to ask questions or raise concerns about Phase 1 and
Phase 2 of the Classification & Compensation Study.

UNOFFICIAL VERSION

3



b) District Reports
Samantha Tobias-Espinosa, Associate Superintendent of Human Resources, reported
that the request to formalize the need for the designation of a bilingual specialist at
Longfellow Middle School had been taken to and approved by the Board. Ms. Tobias-
Espinosa reported progress with the Classification & Compensation study and announced
that a MOU with BCCE for 10% out of class pay to compensate IA ECE who must diaper
students in the TK program.

c) Commissioner Reports
Commissioner Roter, in reference to the public comments made in support of Ms. Garcia,
reminded the Commission that while the merit rules and minimum qualifications must
be adhered to, there are multiple paths to how experience is obtained. He asked Charlie
Castillo, Executive Director Classified Personnel, to review Ms. Garcia’s application
through a more flexible and non-traditional lens and reminded her of the appeals
process. He commended Personnel Commission staff for the number of new hires in
August and reported that he and Mr. Castillo are meeting regularly to review the merit
rules. He invited everyone to attend the upcoming October 10th special meeting
concerning classified vacancies.
Vice-Chairperson Goldstein said that AB1699 is likely to be signed into law by the
Governor which could bring about big changes for merit districts. She urged Union
partners to have a good understanding of AB1699 and to identify provisions for
negotiation as part of the CBA in respect to this new legislation.  She encouraged
everyone to attend a Berkeley Public School Funds event on October 21stas a great way
to become informed on issues concerning the District’s funding and budget.
Chairperson Zenor-Davis shared his appreciation for everyone on the Commission, the
staff, and the public who attend and participate in the meetings. He said that everyone
who participates in these meetings believes in equity, inclusion and belonging. He
reminded the Commission that with big discussions around the well-being of BUSD’s
Classified staff come big feelings; he cautioned to not use words that could imply the
pitting one group against another.

d) Personnel Executive Director
Secretary Castillo, in response to the public comments made in support of Ms. Garcia,
explained his role as Executive Director is to be neutral, follow the merit rules, the
education code and to respect the minimum qualifications of the job description. He
reviewed the examination and personnel activity for August, highlighting the work of the
department and acknowledging the human resources for their phenomenal partnership
in the hiring process. He said the department’s professional development day will be
spent discussing strategies for tightening security around the exam process as well as a

Personnel Commission Meeting Minutes 
September 27th, 2023 UNOFFICIAL VERSION

4



deep-dive into the merit rules as a service model. He said that someone who received an 
advance step at a previous meeting submitted additional materials after the fact and he 
needs to address with the Commissioners how to move forward with that when the time 
comes.  

e) Classification & Compensation Study
Secretary Castillo gave an update on the Study, including preliminary participation data
for Phase 3. He provided key dates for the completion of the project, including a
November special meeting for Eric Hall & Associates (EH&A) to deliver Phase 2
recommendations; Phase 3 and Phase 4 recommendations will come to the December
13th Personnel Commission meeting; final recommendations will be presented to the
Board in January followed by negotiations between the District and the Unions.

7. Consent Items
Items 7c and 7d were pulled for discussion.

a) Data Integrity Specialist
b) Instructional Assistant II, SPED
c) Instructional Tech, BASP
d) Instructional Tech, BASP (2) 

e) Instructional Specialist (Cooking)
f) Safety and Risk Coordinator
g) School Safety Officer
h) School Administrative Assistant II

Commissioner Roter moved to ratify lists 7a-b and 7e-h; Vice-Chairperson Goldstein seconded
the motion,
Approved 3-0.

Commissioner Roter asked for clarification regarding the nature of the two Instructional Tech, 
BASP eligibility lists. Erin Arinez, Classified Personnel Supervisor, explained that timing 
prevented list 7c from inclusion in the August 30th meeting. List 7c was sent to the hiring 
authority and exhausted, so a new recruitment was done and brought to this meeting for 
approval.  Commissioner Roter appreciated the explanation and congratulated the exam team 
for completing two recruitments so quickly. Vice-Chairperson Goldstein asked for clarification 
on the HR vetting process for candidates on eligibility lists.  Ms. Arinez explained before names 
are put onto an eligibility list, each person is looked up in the system to see if there is a do not 
rehire note on the file; those who have not gone through the District’s fingerprinting process 
would not be vetted because no job offers have been made when generating lists. This process 
applies to every eligibility list. 
Commissioner Roter made a motion to ratify eligibility lists 7c-d; Vice-Chairperson 
Goldstein seconded the motion,  
Approved 3-0 

Personnel Commission Meeting Minutes 
September 27th, 2023 UNOFFICIAL VERSION

5



8. Conference Items
a) Request to Revise Instructional Technology Technician (ITT) Job Description
Wyn Skeels, CTE Program Manager, addressed Vice-Chairperson Goldstein’s concerns
regarding the elimination of certain duties, knowledge and abilities from the existing ITT
job description. Mr. Skeels explained that the technical networking aspects of the current
job description were never meant to be in there. The current job description has made
the it difficult to recruit for the position. Vice-Chairperson Goldstein asked about how the
ITT position is being handled in the Classification & Compensation Study and if the job is
leveled correctly for salary. Secretary Castillo said that the core functions of the position
had not changed and did not feel it needed to be leveled down. Mr. Skeels said that the
job is quite complex and that he wants to attract highly qualified candidates; the salary is
appropriate. Ms. Tobias-Espinosa and Mr. Castillo agreed that the position should now be
reviewed by EH&A for the Classification & Compensation study.
Commissioner Roter made a motion to approve the revised Instructional Technology
Technician job description; Vice-Chairperson Goldstein seconded the motion,
Approved, 3-0

b) Request for Bilingual Family Engagement & Equity Specialist, Longfellow
Secretary Castillo explained the Board had expanded on the Latinx resolution, to include
very specific language about the bilingual school assignments. Commissioner Roter
reminded the Commission that at the last meeting, it became apparent that the merit
rules require the Board to designate a bilingual position, which was done at the Board’s
September 20th meeting. With this action, the rules have been satisfied.
Vice-Chairperson Goldstein made a motion to approve the request for a bilingual Family
Engagement & Equity Specialist at Longfellow Middle School; Commissioner Roter
seconded the motion,
Approved, 3-0

9. Discussion Items
a) Agenda Item Request – M.Scherr

Ms. Scherr brought examples to the Personnel Commission that demonstrate what the
Union views as discrepancies in the examination process, in particular, the pass points.
Vice-Chairperson Goldstein said there is not a set point for the exams, that a floating
pass point is left to the discretion of the Director and it is usually based on a curve.
Commissioner Roter asked a number of clarifying questions around the different stages
of the examination process (written, oral, performance), passing points and how the
exams are weighted. Ms. Arinez and Mr. Castillo said the written exams are scored

Personnel Commission Meeting Minutes 
September 27th, 2023 UNOFFICIAL VERSION

6



either automatically (multiple choice) or by a subject matter expert (long or short 
answer) and then given a percentage score. Oral exams are given by a panel of subject 
matter experts, all reading from the same script with only the ability to ask clarifying 
questions to a candidate’s response; the same panel and the same questions are given 
to every candidate. The oral exam is rated on a scale of 1 to 5. A candidate must pass 
both exams in order to be placed on the eligibility list. Ms. Scherr reiterated there is no 
consistency in the examination process. Frank Hernandez, Maintenance Engineer, asked 
if there is a set passing point on an oral exam. Ms. Arinez clarified there is always a 
passing point and that it is always communicated to the applicant but it does vary 
depending on the recruitment. Ms. Scherr reiterated that it is important for the District 
to promote from within and she asked the Commission to review the exam process 
further. Chairperson Zenor-Davis said these conversations are important and that the 
District does want to promote from within. 

b) Agenda Item Request – M. Wilcox
Secretary Castillo said that he had communicated with Matt Wilcox, School Campus
Aide, several times regarding his step advance request and why it could not be
considered. He said the Personnel Commission been given a fiscal responsibility with
advanced step placements and that considering a request for an employee in the
position for a year could set a dangerous precedent. He said that the language in the
merit rules around step advance placements does need to be more explicit and define
the parameters to the timing of a request.  Mr. Wilcox said the rules need to be fully
communicated if they are going to be enforced and read from Mr. Castillo’s initial email
denying his request which he feels did not provide enough information. He asked the
Commission if he had all of the information he needed and if he did not, should he be
held accountable for those rules? Commissioner Roter cited merit rule 70.100.1 and said
that while he had been on the Commission, the step advance had been reserved for
new employees. He believes the intent is clear, that the step advance is for new hires
but admits the language needs to be clearer as to what constitutes a new hire (30/60
days). He feels the exception would be if there were extenuating circumstances that
prevents a new hire from filing the application within a reasonable window (30/60
days). Vice-Chairperson Goldstein asked Mr. Wilcox what he was told when he was
hired in respect to the step advance. Mr. Wilcox said he was told he could apply for a
step advance but no timeframe was given. Vice-Chairperson Goldstein asked to refer the
matter to human resources to improve communications with new hires regarding the
step advance request process. Mr. Hernandez said he believes the merit rules give the
Personnel Commission the authority to post a hard to fill position starting at Step 5 on
the salary range. Vice-Chairperson Goldstein asked if the entire salary range is included
when a job is posted. Ms. Arinez confirmed the entire range is included but with
language indicating that everyone starts at step 1. Vice-Chairperson Goldstein discussed

Personnel Commission Meeting Minutes 
September 27th, 2023 UNOFFICIAL VERSION

7



varying compensation philosophies; high vacancy rates could indicate an inconsistent 
compensation philosophy or the wrong compensation philosophy for the market in 
which the organization operates. Chairperson Zenor-Davis said this discussion affirms 
the need for the District’s Classification & Compensation study.  

10. Closed Session
Performance Evaluation of the Executive Director, Classified Personnel – Government
Code § 54954.5 (e)
The Personnel Commission went into closed session at 6:56PM

11. Report from Closed Session
The Personnel Commission reconvened at 7:23PM. Chairperson Zenor-Davis reported
that the Commissioners had a preliminary discussion regarding the Executive Director,
Classified Personnel’s performance evaluation and next steps.

12. Public Comments
None.

13. Next Meeting
A special meeting of the Personnel Commission will convene on October 10 at 4:30 in
Room 126 at 2020 Bonar Street. The next regular meeting of the Personnel Commission
will be held on October 25 at 4:30PM in the Boardroom.

14. Adjournment
The meeting was adjourned at 7:25 pm.

Personnel Commission Meeting Minutes 
September 27th, 2023 UNOFFICIAL VERSION

8



Berkeley Unified School District 
Personnel Commission Meeting Minutes 

October 10th, 2023 – 4:30 pm 

1. Call to Order
The meeting was held in a hybrid format, live in Room 126 (2020 Bonar St.) and via Zoom meeting
#811 4287 6822. The meeting was called to order at 4:30 p.m.

2. Roll Call & Establishment of Quorum
Chairperson Goldstein, Vice-Chairperson Zenor-Davis, and Commissioner Roter were present,
and a quorum was established.

3. Public Comments
None.

4. Approval & Adoption of Agenda
Vice-Chairperson Zenor-Davis made a motion to approve the meeting agenda; Commissioner
Roter seconded the motion,
Approved, 3-0.

5. Conference Item
a.) Step Advance Request – E. Mayer
Charlie Castillo, Executive Director Classified Personnel, said that Emily Mayer is a cum laude
Harvard graduate with school district experience who understands the intricacies of district
payroll and finance systems. He strongly recommends a Step 3 advanced step placement for
Ms. Mayer as Executive Director, Fiscal. Ms. Mayer said she was attracted to BUSD because
she admired the work being done to support vulnerable populations and that its size will allow
her to effectively incorporate innovative operational strategies to support the
Superintendent’s vision. Commissioner Roter welcomed Ms. Mayer to the District and said the
Executive Director, Fiscal role is critical for the District.
Vice-Chairperson Goldstein moved to approve Ms. Mayer’s step advance placement at step 3;
Commissioner Roter seconded the motion,
Approved, 3-0.

6. Discussion Item
b.) Classified Vacancy List

Secretary Castillo presented a report detailing the current classified vacancies (164) with
respect to position, location, and FTE. Mr. Castillo explained his team had identified 47
positions on the list that are to be eliminated or are dangling FTE from another position. Of
the remaining list of 117 vacancies, three classifications (IA SPED, Instructional Tech BASP and

UNOFFICIAL VERSION

9



 

School Campus Aide) represent 65% of the vacant positions.  The Commissioners asked a 
number of clarifying questions of Mr. Castillo and Samantha Tobias-Espinosa, Associate 
Superintendent of Human Resources. Ms. Tobias-Espinosa said that BUSD is doing the same or 
slightly better as other school districts in the Bay Area in filling classified vacancies. She noted 
nationwide difficulty for school districts to fill IA SPED, bus driver and nutrition services 
positions. Mildred Scherr and Frank Hernandez said the Union is concerned about the number 
of long-term subs working in vacant positions. Ms. Tobias-Espinosa asked the Union to refer 
this issue to her department. The Commissioners asked Secretary Castillo to add a column to 
the spreadsheet to start tracking the sub status of vacant positions. Mr. Hernandez suggested 
a payroll audit could identify long-term subs and allow the District to enforce rules around 
eligibility lists and hiring. Chairperson Zenor-Davis summarized the discussion and next steps. 
Secretary Castillo said it was realistic to expect an update in February or March. 

7. Public Comment
Sarah Goodwin, Administrative Assistant III, acknowledged and thanked Malika Upshur for her
assistance in compiling data for the special meeting.

8. Next Meeting
The next regular Personnel Commission meeting will be held on October 25th, 2023, at 4:30
pm in the Board room. A special meeting on Phase 2 of the Classification & Compensation
Study will convene on November 8th, 2023, at 4:30 pm in the Board room

9. Adjournment
The meeting was adjourned at 6:33 pm.

Personnel Commission Special Meeting Minutes 
October 10th, 2023 UNOFFICIAL VERSION

10



Examinations Administered in the Month of September 2023: 

Classification
Training & 
Experience Written Oral Performance

Instructional Technician - Before & After School Program 15 9

Instructional Assistant 18 13

Nutrition Services Assistant 1 1

Nutrition Services Satellite Operator I 4 4

Instructional Assistant II, Special Education 11 11

Maintenance Engineer 8 2

Data Integrity Specialist 6 4

Instructional Specialist, Cooking 4 3

Student Admissions Specialist 56

Family Engagement & Equity Specialist 23 11

New Hires/New Assignments/Promotions Processed in the Month of September 2023: 

Name- Employment Type- Classification- Location/Dept.

Amey, Ronald Promotion School Safety Officer Berkeley High

Benhammon, Rachida New Hire Instructional Assistant II, SPED Rosa Parks

Blanco Valdez, Marcel Promotion Instructional Assistant  Rosa Parks

Boykins, Calvin New Hire Custodian II Berkeley High

Burns, Josephine New Hire Instructional Technology Technician CTE @ King MS

Calderon Gonzalez, Giuliana New Hire Instructional Tech- BASP Sylvia Mendez

Cornejo-Perez, Brianna Louise New Hire Instructional Tech- BASP Emerson

Davis Miller, Natalie New Hire School Administrative Assistant ECE BEARS

Guillen, Saidy Promotion Human Resources Technician Human Resources

Hu, Tiffany New Hire Instructional Tech- BASP Malcolm X

Landry, Melina Promotion Family Engagement & Equity Spec. OFFEE

Murphy, Nia New Hire Instructional Assistant  Emerson

Secrease, Kenyana New Hire School Safety Officer Berkeley High

Webster, Emiyah New Hire Instructional Tech- BASP Rosa Parks

Valli, Mary Promotion Instructional Assistant II, SPED Ruth Acty

11



Berkeley Unified School District
Merit System

Eligibility List for :  Family Engagement & Equity Specialist
(Open and Promotional)

Written Examination: August 9, 2023
Oral Examination: September 25, 2023

Promotional
1 Gregory Williams
2 Paula Robinson

Open
1 Tyjohn Sykes*
2 Candice Lewis*
3 Horea Mussa-Said*
4 Josner Tiles*
5 Mignon Combs*
6 Cinthia Hernandez (bilingual)
6 Vivian Parker (bilingual Brazilian Portuguese/Spanish)
7 Mary-Lee Smith
7 Eric Walker
8 Rebeca Torres Avila (bilingual)
9 Reina Iniguez (bilingual)

10 Myriam Salem (bilingual)

* Eligibility to expire  November 2, 2023

Charles Castillo Date
Secretary, Personnel Commission

Timothy Zenor-Davis Date
Chairperson, Personnel Commission

List Established by Personnel Commission:  October 25, 2023 to expire October 24, 2024

12



Berkeley Unified School District
Merit System

Eligibility List for :  Instructional Assistant
(Open and Promotional)

Training & Experience Examination: October 5, 2023
Written Examination: October 12, 2023

Promotional
1 Jesus Hernandez* (bilingual)

Open
1 Maria DeKlotz 6 Gina Wall
1 Monica Rodas (bilingual) 6 Ellen Faden*
2 Adriana Jaime 6 Amanda Robles* (bilingual)
2 Jorie Heilman* 7 Mario Avalos (bilingual)
3 Cesar Plescencia 7 Martha Lazcano
3 Samah Medhkour* 7 Azenath Wiggins*
4 Cristina Lira Bazan (bilingual) 8 Alexis Argueta (bilingual)
4 Lesha Stewart 9 Evely Torres** (bilingual)
4 Katrina Siler* 10 Isabelle Macewan*
5 Aamaria Vessel 11 Jermaine Robertson
5 Eric Ramirez Zepeda* (bilingual)
5 Denise Solorzano* (bilingual)

* Eligibility to expire September 27, 2024
** Eligibility to expire August 29, 2024

Charles Castillo Date
Secretary, Personnel Commission

Timothy Zenor-Davis Date
Chairperson, Personnel Commission

List Established by Personnel Commission:  October 25, 2023 to expire October 24, 2024

13



Berkeley Unified School District
Merit System

Eligibility List for :  Nutrition Services Satellite Operator I
(Open)

Training & Experience Examination: September 8, 2023
Performance Examination: September 14, 2023

Open
1 Jasper Levinson-Worsley
1 Pamela Thomas
2 Drake Chan
3 Arti Darshini*

* Eligibility to expire June 22, 2024

Charles Castillo Date
Secretary, Personnel Commission

Timothy Zenor-Davis Date
Chairperson, Personnel Commission

List Established by Personnel Commission:  October 25, 2023 to expire October 24, 2024

14



Berkeley Unified School District
Merit System

Eligibility List for :  Nutrition Services Assistant
(Open and Promotional)

Training & Experience Examination: October 25, 2023
Performance Examination: October 24, 2023

Open
1 Nikko Butler

Charles Castillo Date
Secretary, Personnel Commission

Timothy Zenor-Davis Date
Chairperson, Personnel Commission

List Established by Personnel Commission: October 25, 2023 to expire October 24, 2024

15



Berkeley Unified School District
Merit System

Eligibility List for :  Maintenance Engineer
(Open)

Written Examination: September 5, 2023
Performance Examination: September 26, 2023

Open
1 Joel Padilla

Charles Castillo Date
Secretary, Personnel Commission

Timothy Zenor-Davis Date
Chairperson, Personnel Commission

List Established by Personnel Commission: October 25, 2023 to expire October 24, 2024

16



Berkeley Unified School District
Merit System

Eligibility List for :  School Campus Aide
(Open)

Training & Experience Assessment: September 26, 2023
Written Examination: October 4, 2023

Open
1 Julia Drummond
2 Gail Atilano
2 Eric Savoia
3 Edilma Pilla
4 Martha Lazcano
5 Arman Evans
5 Reed Geritz
6 Danielle De Silva
7 Jermaine Robertson
8 Dora Alicia De la O Rivas*
8 Denise Bennett
9 April Bryant

10 Carnisha Alhassan
11 Evon Hasaballa

* Eligibility to expire August 29, 2024

Charles Castillo Date
Secretary, Personnel Commission

Timothy Zenor-Davis Date
Chairperson, Personnel Commission

List Established by Personnel Commission:  October 25, 2023 to expire October 24, 2024

17



PERSONNEL COMMISSION  
BERKELEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

October 25, 2023 

AGENDA ITEM 8 a. 

SUBJECT: REQUEST FOR ADVANCED STEP PLACEMENT FOR JENNIFER KANESHIRO, DATA 
INTEGRITY SPECIALIST 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
The attached request and supporting documents support an advanced step placement for Ms. 
Jennifer Kaneshiro who has requested to be placed at Step 4. Ms. Kaneshiro has over 10 total 
years of Data Consultant or IT experience in California charter schools. This makes her 
experience directly related to the work she will be doing at BUSD. This area of job experience 
expertise is complemented by a bachelor’s degree in computer science from the University of 
Hawaii.   

Information Technology positions are always difficult to recruit for as we are often competing 
with the private sector which pays more. I am confident that Ms. Kaneshiro’s experience with 
large charter schools’ IT and data programs will immediately be translated into positive change 
for the District’s IT goals in data integrity.   

70.100.1 Initial Placement 
All new employees shall be appointed at the hiring rate for the class as approved by the 
Commission. The hiring rate shall be the first step of the schedule except for classes where 
recruitment efforts have indicated difficulty in recruiting at that step. An accelerated hiring rate 
may be set, with the approval of the Board and the Commission, at any step of the schedule of  

Schedule 52  Step 1   Hourly  Step 2   Hourly  Step 3  Hourly  Step 4   Hourly  Step 5  Hourly 

Range 55 $6,114.88  $ 37.63   $6,430.13  $39.57  $6,748.63   $41.53   $7,096.38  $43.67   $7,447.38  $45.83 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S RECOMMENDATION  
The Executive Director – Classified Personnel recommends the request for advanced step 
placement at Step 4/Schedule 52/Range 55 be granted.  

ATTACHMENT A



(circle one)

*Please note that there is no step/increase after Step 5 until Longevity at 10 years.

(required)

(Education, Government, Public, Private, etc) 

Jennifer Kaneshiro

BS in Computer Science

CA Charter Schools

X X

October 23, 2023 Berkeley District Office

Data Integrity Specialist

ATTACHMENT A



Jennifer Kaneshiro 

October 13, 2023 

Re: Request for Advanced Step Placement 

Commission Chairperson: 

I am writing to request an Advanced Step Placement at Step 4 on the Classified Salary Schedule 
for the Data Integrity Specialist position. My included resume demonstrates 11 years of 
experience in CALPADS submissions and attendance reporting for charter schools of varying 
grade levels and enrollment sizes. 

Feel free to contact me at the email listed above if you need additional information. 

Thank you for your consideration, 

Jennifer Kaneshiro 

ATTACHMENT A



Jennifer T. Kaneshiro 

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 

EdTec, Emeryville, CA Sept. 2012-Oct. 2023 
Senior Data Consultant Jan. 2019-Oct. 2023 

Similar tasks as Data Consultant with a higher average of 19 California charter schools. 

Additional duties 
 Created Excel tools to streamline data validation processes
 Researched Student Information System (SIS) customizations
 Trained new hires

Data Consultant Sept. 2012-Dec. 2018 

Managed an average of 12 California charter schools in the areas below: 

CALPADS 
 Scrubbed SIS student, staff, and course data for missing or incorrect information that would

cause CALPADS validation errors
 Coordinated data cleanup with school staff
 Reviewed CALPADS submission reports with schools and answered follow-up compliance

questions
 Kept submissions on track to meet deadlines

Attendance Reporting
 Checked SIS enrollment and attendance data were up to date
 Resolved any discrepancies that may affect attendance reports with school staff
 Generated monthly attendance reports and reviewed for high-level errors
 Produced Principal Apportionment reports (P-reports) and reviewed with school officials

PowerSchool (PS) SIS support
 Setup PS for start of year enrollment, attendance, grading, master schedules, and CALPADS

reporting
 Created report cards, transcripts, and miscellaneous custom reports
 Installed and maintained customizations
 Trained school staff in proper SIS use
 Troubleshot SIS issues including incorrect GPA calculations, attendance inconsistencies,

unexpected report outputs, login problems, etc.

Internal Projects 
 Created department knowledgebase of information learned over the years
 Participated in department groups that kept up to date on SIS and compliance matters

EDUCATION 

Bachelor of Science in Computer Science Dec. 2004 
University of Hawaii at Manoa, Honolulu, HI 

ATTACHMENT A



ATTACHMENT A


	PC Meeting Minutes 9-27-23 DRAFT SG.pdf
	Personnel Commission Special Meeting Minutes 10-10-23 DRAFT SG.pdf
	ADV Step Request-J.Kaneshiro FLYER.pdf
	J.Kaneshiro Adv Step Packet.pdf
	JKaneshiro_AdvStep Req Form.pdf
	JKaneshiro_AdvStepLetter_Redacted.pdf
	resume_JKANESHIRO_20231013_Redacted.pdf
	JKaneshiro-deg.pdf

	September Personnel Activity.pdf
	September 23

	Family Engagement & Equity Spec 102523.pdf
	Eligibility List

	Instructional Assistant 102523.pdf
	Eligibility List

	Nutrition Services Satellite Operator I 102523.pdf
	Eligibility List

	Nutrition Services Assistant 102523.pdf
	Eligibility List

	Maintenance Engineer 102523.pdf
	Eligibility List

	School Campus Aide 102523.pdf
	Eligibility List




